ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 


1. The Circuit Court erred in holding that the Petitioner Retirement Board abused its discretion 

when it arbitrarily and capriciously denied the Respondent the benefit of the litigation settlement 

between the Respondent and his employer. 

2. The lower Court erred in finding that the Respondent's employer had the authority to enter an 

agreement with the Respondent regarding retirement benefits that was contrary to statute. 

3. The lower Court erred in Ordering the Petitioner Board to partially fund a settlement reached by 

the Respondent and his employer with retirement trust fund money. 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

This is an appeal by the Petitioner, West Virginia Consolidated Public Retirement Board 

(hereinafter "Board"), of the Circuit Court's Order reversing the Board's Final Order denying 

Respondent Ollie Hunting's request to add a 2009 lump sum litigation settlement of$54,352 to his 

2009 salary rather than apportioning it to the years in which it would have been earned (1996-2001) 

in order to calculate his retirement annuity from the Teacher's Retirement System. (AR 3-9). 

On July 1, 2011, Respondent Ollie Hunting retired from the Teachers Retirement System 

with 38.672 years of contributing service credit. (AR 47). He was last employed by the Lincoln 

County Board of Education as an Attendance Director. During his years of employment, he filed 

numerous grievances against his employer. (AR 48). 

In July and August of 2009, the Respondent entered into a settlement agreement with his 

employer which provided that he would be paid a lump sum amount of $70,000 ofwhich $54,532 

was to be considered past wages with the remaining amount ($15,468) reflecting interest. (AR 149

153). The agreement released all claims Respondent had against Lincoln County Board of 

Education, including claims contained in Lincoln County Circuit Court Civil Actions 00-C-44, 99



AA-16 and 97-AA-12. (AR 149-153). 

All of these grievances asserted claims for additional wages/salary for the years of 1996

2001. The settlement ($70,000.) was paid to Petitioner in FY 2009-20010; however, there is nothing 

in the settlement agreement suggesting any allocation of the wages as to any years in which the 

wages were earned. The Petitioner Retirement Board was not a party to the settlement, and 

therefore had no notice or opportunity to object to or respond to the litigation. None ofthe parties 

consulted the Petitioner Retirement Board regarding the settlement. On September 2,2011, the 

Circuit Court ofLincoln County entered an Order commemorating the settlement and dismissing the 

following civil actions: 97-AA-09, 98-C-05, OO-C-44, 01-AA-07 and 02-AA-03. (AR 136-139). 

The Petitioner Retirement Board first became aware of the settlement and Order after Respondent 

retired inJulyof2011 and an audit in his account reflected a spike in his 2009 salary. (AR 119-120). 

An annuity from the Teachers Retirement System is calculated by multiplying two percent 

by the number of years of service credit by the member's final average salary. The final average 

salary is the average ofthe member's highest five years out ofthe last fifteen years ofearnings. See 

W. Va. §JB-7A-3(5). Respondent's highest five years ofearnings were FY 2006, 2008, 2009, 2010, 

and 2011. None ofthese years were the subject ofthe settlement/previous Court's Order regarding 

his previous salary disputes in the civil actions against his employer. 

Respondent's final average salary, excluding the $54,352 settlement added to his 2009 

salary, was $75,982.76. The lower Court erroneously held in its subsequent Order involving 

Petitioner Retirement Board that the $54,352 should be added to his 2009 salary to reflect that he 

earned $132,871.60 in 2009 rather than apportioning it amongst the years in which it would have 

been earned (1996-2001). This ruling artificially inflates (spikes) Respondent's final average salary 
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and thus increases his monthly retirement annuity contrary to statute. (AR 3-9). 

The lower Court's Order reversed the Respondent Retirement Board's Final Order which 

found that pursuantto statute, W.Va. Code §18-7 A-3(12), the $54,352 should be apportioned evenly 

amongst the years of1996-2001, the years in which the salary would have been earned. (AR 45-53). 

After making such allocation, none ofthe years in question qualified as Respondent's highest five 

years for computation of his final average salary. 

By Order entered on June 6, 2016, the Circuit Court of Lincoln County, reversed the 

Petitioner Board's Final Order finding that the Petitioner Board had arbitrarily and capriciously 

abused its discretion in not recognizing the settlement between the parties which intended for the 

settlement to be added to his 2009 salary year for purposes of calculating his retirement benefit, 

rather than the years in which it was or should have been earned (1996-2001). (AR 3-9). 

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The lower Court found that based upon the its involvement in the previous civil litigation 

between Respondent and his employer (Lincoln County Board ofEducation), the Court knew that 

the parties intended for the settlement to be treated as salary earned in fiscal year 2009 for purposes 

ofcalculating Respondent's retirement annuity even though the litigation involved the underpayment 

ofwages for the years of 1996-2001. The lower Court then concluded that the Petitioner Retirement 

Board's Final Order which apportioned the settlement to the years in which it would have or should 

have been earned was arbitrary and capricious because it denied the Respondent the benefit of the 

settlement agreement. 

The lower Court's Order is erroneous because it requires the Petitioner Retirement Board to 

act contrary to statute. Pursuant to W.Va. Code §18-7 A-3(12), retroactive salary payments made 
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pursuant to a Court Order are to be "allocated to and considered paid in the periods in which the 

work was or would have been done." Contrary to this statute, the lower Court's Order directs the 

Petitioner Retirement Board to treat a settlement for the underpayment of wages over a five year 

period as if the wages were all earned during a single year. This would artificially inflate (spike) 

Respondent's final average salary thereby erroneously increasing his retirement annuity. 

Additionally, the Lincoln County Board ofEducation does not have the authority to enter into 

agreements regarding pension benefits which are contrary to statute. The lower Court erred in 

requiring the Petitioner Retirement Board to implement the ultra vires agreement entered into bythe 

Lincoln County Board of Education with the Respondent. Additionally, the lower Court's Order 

erroneously permits the Lincoln County Board of Education to partially fund an ultra vires 

settlement agreement with trust fund money that does not belong to it, and money which can only 

be used for the exclusive benefit ofthe members ofthe trust. 

For the reasons more fully discussed below, the Petitioner, West Virginia Consolidated 

Public Retirement Board, respectfully requests that this honorable Court reverse the lower Court's 

Order and affirm the Board's Final Order. (Board's Final Order AR 45-53). 

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT 

Because the principle issues in this case have been authoritatively decided in previous 

opinions by this Court, oral argument under Rev. R.A.P. 18(a) is not necessary unless the Court 

determines that other issues arising upon the record should be addressed. If the Court determines 

that oral argument is necessary, then this case is appropriate for a Rule 19 argument and disposition 

by memorandum decision. 
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- .. 

STANDARD OF REVIEW 


"In cases where the circuit court has amended the result before the administrative agency, this 

Court reviews the final order of the circuit court and the ultimate disposition by it of an 

administrative law case under an abuse ofdiscretion standard and reviews questions oflaw de novo." 

Syl. pt. 2, Muscatell v. Cline, 196 W.Va. 588, 474 S.E.2d 518 (1996). 

ARGUMENT 

I. The Circuit Court erred in holding that the Petitioner Retirement Board abused its 
discretion when it arbitrarily and capriciously denied the Respondent the benefit of the 
litigation settlement between the Respondent and his employer. 

The Petitioner Retirement Board did not abuse its discretion or act arbitrarily and capriciously 

in refusing to apply a settlement agreement in a manner that was contrary to statute. Petitioner 

Retirement Board does not have the authority to act contrary to the mandates of a statute. 

Additionally, Petitioner Board was not a party to that settlement agreement and had no notice of it. 

Respondent filed numerous grievances against his employer, Lincoln County Board of 

Education, regarding the underpayment of wages for the for the years of 1996-2001. In 2009, the 

Respondent entered into a settlement agreement with his employer which provided that Respondent 

would be paid a lump sum amount of$70,000.00 ofwhich $54,532 was for wages. CAR 149-153). 

There is nothing in the settlement agreement suggesting any allocation of the wages to any year in 

which the wages were earned; however, the settlement reflects and all of the parties agree that the 

settlement involved the underpayment of wages for the years of 1996-2001. CAR 149-153). 

By Order entered on September 2,2011, the Lincoln County Circuit Court commemorated 

the settlement and dismissed the following civil actions: 00-C-44, 98-C-05; 97-AA-09; 01-AA-07 

and 02-AA03. CAR 136-139). Petitioner Board was not a party to this civil action and had no notice 
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of it. 

Although this money was for the underpayment ofwages during the years of1996-2001, the 

Circuit Court found in its June 6, 2016 Order (the Order which is the subject of this appeal) that 

having presided over the earlier civil action, that the Court knew, although perhaps not expressed 

in the settlement agreement, that it was the parties' intent to have the $54,532 added to Respondent's 

2009 salary even though the litigation was for the underpayment ofwages during the years of1996

2001. (AR 3-9). In that Order, the Court concluded that the Petitioner Retirement Board abused its 

discretion by arbitrarily and capriciously refusing to apply the settlement reached by the Respondent 

and his employer in this manner. 

The Petitioner Retirement Board did not act arbitrarily and capriciously, but rather followed 

the dictates ofthe statute. The Court's ruling is erroneous because the Petitioner Retirement Board 

does not have the authority to act contrary to the mandates ofa statute. 

The statute, West Virginia Code §18-7 A-3(5), definesjinal average salary as " ... the average 

ofthe five highest fiscal year salaries earned as a member within the last fifteen fiscal years oftotal 

service credit..." Subsection (12) of said statute defines gross salary as follows: 

(12) "Gross salary" means the fixed annual or periodic cash wages paid by a participating public 
employer to a member for performing duties for the participating public employer for which the 
member was hired. Gross salary shall be allocated and reported in the fiscal year in which the work 
was done. Gross salary also includes retroactive payments made to a member to correct a clerical 
error. or made pursuant to a court order or final order of an administrative agency charged with 
enforcing federal or state law pertaining to the member's rights to employment or wages, with all 
retroactive salary payments to be allocated to and considered paid in the periods in which the work 
was or would have been done. Gross salary does not include lump sum payments for bonuses, early 
retirement incentives, severance payor any other fringe benefit ofany kind including, but not limited 
to, transportation allowances, automobiles or automobile allowances, or lump sum payments for 
unused, accrued leave of any type or character. West Virginia Code §18-7A-3(12) 

Clearly, the Respondent is not statutorily entitled to have the $54,352 lump sum settlement 
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payment included in his FY 2009-2010 salary for the purpose ofcalculating his final average salary. 

The statute requires the payment to be allocated to the years in which it was earned. There being no 

evidence submitted to the contrary, the Hearing Officer correctly allocated the settlement equally 

($10,870.40) amongst each of the five years in which the salary would have been earned resulting 

in none of those years qualifying as any of the five high years used for the calculation of 

Respondent's final average salary. (AR 46-53). 

The Respondent's annual earnings for the fifteen years prior to his retirement, including the 

FY 09-10 lump sum payment, were as follows: 

FY 95-96 - $42,202.88 
FY 96-97 - $42,970.42 (with settlement + $10,870.40 = $53,840.82) 
FY 97-98 - $41,927.97 (with settlement + $10,870.40 = $52,798.37) 
FY 98-99 - $62,854.83 (with settlement + $10,870.40 = $73,725.23) 
FY 99-00 - $52,415.88 (with settlement + $10,870.40 = $63,286.28) 
FY 00-01 - $52,863.60 (with settlement + $10,870.40 = $63,734.00) 
FY 01-02 - $49,283.42 
FY 02-03 - $58,969.81 
FY 03-04 - $61,260.40 
FY 04-05 - $63,781.20 
FY 05-06 - $70,222.22* 
FY 06-07 - $69,730.20 
FY 07-08 - $74,182.80* 
FY 08-09 - $78,469.60* 
FY 09-10 - $78,519.60* 
FY 10-11 - $78,519.60* 

* denotes the years used in calculating final average salary 

Respondent's final average salary, including andlor excluding the $54,352 settlement, was the same 

result of$75,982.76. 1 The lower Court erred in Ordering the Petitioner to add the $54,352 to 2009 

IWhile the 98-99 year appears to be among one of the highest, $17,746.64 was a 
settlement for additional compensation during the years of 1996-97 ($5,877.75), 1997-98 
($5,877.75), and 1998-99 ($5,991,15) and thus must be apportioned accordingly resulting in no 
change to the years used by Board staff in the calculation of the annuity. 
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salary to reflect that he earned $132,871.60 in that year which would spike his final average salary, 

and thus increase his monthly retirement annuity. 

Deputy Director Terasa Miller testified during the administrative hearing that pennitting 

Respondent to use one hundred thirty two thousand dollars as his 2009 salary would "spike" his final 

average salary which is contrary to the definition of gross salary in the statute. (AR 122). 

The Petitioner Retirement Board applied the statute appropriately; whereas, the lower Court 

Order is inconsistent with the statute. "Administrative agencies and their executive officers are 

creatures ofstatute and delegates ofthe Legislature. Their power is dependent upon statutes, so that 

they must find within the statute warrant for the exercise of any authority which they claim. They 

have no general or common-law powers but only such as have been conferred upon them by law 

expressly or by implication." McDaniel v. WV Division ofLabor. Syllabus Point 4, 214 W.Va. 719; 

519 S.E.2d 277 (2003). 

The Petitioner Retirement Board cannot act contrary to the mandates of a statute. 

Additionally, the Petitioner Retirement Board was not a party to the Lincoln County proceedings 

between Respondent and his employer, and had no notice ofit; therefore, as a matter ofdue process, 

the Order regarding the settlement is not binding upon the Petitioner Retirement Board. Although 

the earlier Order/settlement agreement is not binding on Petitioner Retirement Board, the Board does 

recognize Court Orders for the back payment ofwages, provided that the Order allocates the wages 

according to the statute amongst the years in which the wages would have been earned. 

Therefore, the lower Court erred in finding that the Petitioner Retirement Board acted 

arbitrarily and capriciously or abused its discretion. The Petitioner Retirement Board acted 

consistently and pursuant to the mandate of the statute which requires Orders for back wages to be 
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allocated to the years in which the salary would have been earned. West Virginia Code §18-7A

3(12). 

II. The lower Court erred in finding that the Respondent's employer had the authority to 
enter into an agreement with the Respondent regarding retirement benefits that was contrary 
to statute. 

Additionally, the lower Court erred in finding that the Respondent's employer had the 

authority to enter into an agreement with the Respondent regarding retirement benefits that was 

contrary to statute. Pennitting employers to bind the state's Retirement Board with ultra vires acts 

by employers regarding pension benefits would have catastrophic implications for public pensions 

and be contrary to statute and long standing common law principles regarding fiduciaries and trust 

accounts. The West Virginia Teachers Retirement System has tens ofthousands ofactive and retired 

members who are all governed by the same statutory provisions for the protection of the fund. 

Employers do not have the authority to bestow something that is contrary to those legislative 

mandates. 

"A governmental unit is not estopped to deny the validity of ultra vires acts of its officers. 

31 c.J.S., Estoppel Section 143, page 719. See also 19 Am. Jur., Estoppel, Section 167, page 819; 

7 M.J. Estoppel, Section 7, page 246. A state or one of its political subdivisions is not bound by the 

legally unauthorized acts of its officers; and all persons must take note ofthe legal1imitations upon 

their power and authority. ( emphasis added) Schippa v. West Virginia Liquor Control Commission; 

Armstrong Products Corporation v. Martin; State v. Conley; The City o/Beckley v. Wolford et. al.; 

Coberly v. Gainer; State v. Chilton, ....... [full citations omitted). " Id. at p. 329. 

The Court in Samsell further held that the "acts of a private agent may bind the principal 

where they are within the apparent scope of his authority; but not so with a public officer, as the 
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State is bound only by authority actually vested in the officer, and his powers are limited and defined 

by its laws." Syllabus Point 4. Samsell v. State Line Development Co., 174 S.E.2d at 325,326 (y.!. 

Va. 1970). 

Contrary to the lower court's ruling in this case, the Respondent's settlement agreement with 

his employer was an ultra vires act by his employer that cannot not bind the Petitioner Retirement 

Board. 

Similarly, in two recently decided cases by this honorable Court, Jones and Curry, this Court 

has refused to apply equitable estoppel to enforce an employer's ultra vires promises to an employee 

as to eligibility for plan participation; and, refused to enforce an employer's ultra vires promises to 

an employee as to eligibility for plan participation when the employee's work hours did not meet the 

criteria in the statute. 2 

In this case, the Respondent's employer did not have the authority to settle a claim with him 

by inflating his final average salary in a manner which would be clearly contrary to the statute which 

requires retroactive salary awards pursuant to Court Orders to be apportioned amongst the years in 

which the salary would have been earned. 

III. The lower Court erred in Ordering the Petitioner Board to partially fund a settlement 
reached by the Respondent and his employer with retirement trust fund money. 

Petitioner Retirement Board is a public body established pursuant to West Virginia Code 

Section 5-1 OD-l to serve as the statutory administrator and fiduciary for the State's several pension 

plans, including the Teachers Retirement System. State ex rei. W. Va. Deputy Sheriffs' Assn., Inc. 

2 W.V. Conso!. Pub. Ret. Bd. V. Jones, 760 S.E.2d 495 (2014); and, Curry v. W.V. 
Consol. Pub. Ret. Bd., 778 S.E.2d 637 (2015). 
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v. Sims, 204 W. Va. 442, 513 S.E.2d 669 (1998). The members of the Board include the highest 

officials ofthe executive and legislative branches ofour State's government, and the Board and its 

members have the "highest fiduciary duty" to maintain the terms of the trust, as spelled out in 

statutes. State ex reI. Dadisman v. Moore, 181 W. Va. 779, 384 S.E.2d 816 (1988). As a federally 

qualified pension plan, it is incumbent upon the Board, as part of its fiduciary duty, to ensure that 

the Teachers Retirement System is administered according to its terms, for the exclusive benefit of 

all plan participants and beneficiaries, in order to protect and preserve the plan's qualified tax status. 

See Internal Revenue Code § 401(a); W. Va. Code § 18-7B-4. 

The Teachers Retirement System trust fund is comprised ofa pool ofmoney from teachers, 

bus drivers and other service personnel and their employers throughout the state ofWest Virginia. 

As a fiduciary to the nine retirement plans it is charged with administering, Petitioner Retirement 

Board, must make every effort to safeguard the funds of every plan which, in this case, means 

ensuring annuity calculations are performed according to statute. The Lincoln County Board of 

Education cannot use money from the Teachers Retirement System trust account to partially fund 

a civil settlement with its employee. The money is for the exclusive benefit of the members. 

The lower Court's Order is erroneous because it permits the Lincoln County Board of 

Education and the Respondent to use trust fund money from the Teachers Retirement System to 

partially fund a civil settlement. The trust money can only be used for the exclusive benefit of the 

member in accordance with statute. To do otherwise, would be a breach ofthe Petitioner Retirement 

Board's fiduciary duty to the other members and the retirement plan. 

CONCLUSION 

Wherefore, pursuant West Virginia Code §18-7A-3(12) the Respondent is not entitled to 

Page -ll



I, J1I 

include the 2009-2010 lump sum settlement as additional salary for the fiscal year of 2009. The 

Respondent and his employer do not have the authority to enter into a settlement that would bind the 

Petitioner Retirement Board in a manner contrary to the statute. The Respondent and his employer 

cannot use money from the Teachers Retirement System trust to fund their civil settlement. 

The lower Court erred in finding that the Petitioner Retirement Board acted arbitrarily and 

capriciously in refusing to recognize a settlement that was contrary to statute. 

Wherefore, Petitioner Retirement Board prays that this honorable Court will reverse the 

Circuit Court's Administrative Appeal Order Reversing CPR Board Order.