Now comes the Respondent, Ollie D. Hunting, who responds to the West Virginia 

Consolidated Public Retirement Board's (hereinafter CPRB) Petition to this Court 

seeking a reversal of the ruling of Judge Jay Hoke of Lincoln County, West Virginia 

Circuit Court in Lincoln County Civil Action No. 12-AA-01. The Respondent, Ollie D. 

Hunting, argues that the circuit court below did not commit error. 

REPLY TO A.SS~GNMENT OF ERROR 

1. 	 The circuit court did not err in holding that the Petitioner CPRB abused its 

discretion when it arbitrarily and capaciously denied the benefit of the litigation 

settlement between the Respondent Hunting and his employer, the Lincoln

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

Mr. Hunting, the Respondent before this Court, was employed with the Lincoln 

County, West Virginia Board of Education in several capacities. The Respondent's last 

position was Attendance Director with the Lincoln County Board of Education. The 

Respondent retired with 38.672 years of service. A.R. 47. 
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The circuit court's procedural order that accepted a settlement agreement 

between the Lincoln County Board of Education (hereinafter LC BOE) and the 

Respondent listed three pending grievance claims, and it is apparent that the 

Respondent litigated many claims against the LC BOE during his employment. Some of 

the court documentation in these cases is included in the Appendix filed with the Court 

by the Petitioner CPRB. 

Appeals of rulings include Lincoln County Civil Action No. 97-AA-09; A.R. 189

193; Mandamus action in Lincoln County Civil Action No. 98-C-05 (seeking 15 days 

compensation related to Lincoln County 95-AA-01); A.R. 194; Appeal in Lincoln County 

Civil Action No. 99-AA-16 (includes claim of retaliation); A.R. 183-188; Mandamus 

action in Lincoln County Civil Action No. 00-C-44 (pay issues relating to litigation in 

Lincoln County 97-AA-09); A.R. 163-180; Appeal in Lincoln County Civil Action No. 01

AA-07 (appeal of adverse ruling that work duties distinguishable and therefore pay did 

not have to be an par with other directors); A.R. 180-182; Appeal in Lincoln County Civil 

Action No. 02-AA-03 (misapplication of favoritism statute, res judicata and certain 

sections of 18-29-2 (m) through (p» A.R.200-212. 

Respondent Hunting and the LC BOE reached an agreement to settle certain 

and different grievance claims made by the Respondent. This settlement agreement, 

reduced to writing, included the following operative facts germane to the litigation - the 

LC BOE agreed to pay $70,000 to the Respondent, with $54,352 being designated as 

salary and $15,648 (through implication) for interest. The document was signed by the 

Respondent sometime in July 2009, Mr. Steven Paine, state superintendent of schools 

on August 20, 2009 and Mr. Roach, superintendent for LC BOE on August 24, 2009. 
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The LC BOE in its meeting of September 8, 2009, approved the settlement 

agreement, noting that it was agreed to by the state superintendent of schools. The 

board minutes also reflect that the amount was for $70,000 with the amount to be 

applied in FY 2009-10. The same minutes state that the Respondent would withdraw 

grievance claims for 1996, 1999 and 2001. A.R. 154-155. 

At a point in time in 2011, the Respondent decided to appeal the decision of the 

CPRB because the retirement package for hid approval was different than what the 

Respondent had submitted to the CRPB. A.R. 80. 

The Respondent filed an appeal with the CPRB in 2011. A hearing was held on 

December 6, 2011; Recommended Decision of the Hearing Officer was submitted 

January 16, 2012; Board review was February 29, 2012; and a final order of the CPRB 

was March 1, 2012. The issue before the CPRB was the settlement agreement between 

the Respondent and the LC BOE, in which the agreement was silent regarding 

allocation of the $54,352 for the years connected with the pending grievance claims 

made by the Respondent. A.R. 50. 

On August 31, 2011, the circuit court, sua sponte, issued a procedural order to 

confirm the comprehensive settlement of all claims. This order was entered by the 

Lincoln County circuit clerk on September 2, 2011. A.R. 136. The circuit court states 

that the settlement agreement would include the withdrawal of actions in Lincoln County 

Civil Action Nos. 00-C-44, 98-C-05, 97-M-09; 01-M-07 and 02-M-03. A.R. 139. 

Additionally, the amount of the settlement would be $70,000 for the Respondent and 

that his past or present wages or salary claims. A.R. 139. The LC BOE by entry of the 
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court order, would have no more claims or defenses. AR. 139. Finally, the Order 

contained the following language: 

It is hereby so ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED 
that said lump sum payment shall have been realized for all 
legal and administrative purposes or reasons in the year in 
which it was paid out, namely 2009, and, that as of that date 
and time, namely 2009, each and all of the above-styled 
cases shall be, and hereby are, considered hereinafter to be 
DISMISSED with prejudice. 

A.R. 139 

After a hearing and a subsequent review of the record, the CPRB issued a final 

decision on March 1,2012. It determined that the lump sum settlement was for 

underpayment and settlement of grievance claims. AR. 46-47. It determined that the 

agreement, entered in July and August 2009, covered claims made by the Respondent 

in Lincoln County Civil Action Nos. 00-C-44, 99-M-16 and 97-M-12. AR. 49. It 

determined that there was no allocation of money to past years, and the settlement 

agreement amounted to an effort to spike income so that the final average salary would 

be higher for the defined retirement pension plan. A.R. 50. The CPRB adopted the 

recommendation for allocation of the agreed settlement amount for FY 96-97 through 

FY 00-01. AR. 52. Finally, it was determined that the approved allocation did not 

change final average salary or annuity. A.R. 52-53. 

In Lincoln County Civil Action No. 12-M-01, the Respondent appealed the 

decision of the CPRB that allocated the agreed settlement amount to past years on 

March 28, 2012. AR. 3-4. In its recitation, the circuit court took into account the entire 

record from administrative hearings and the entire administrative record from the CPRB 

and all proceedings entertained and settled by the court. AR. 4-5. The court, relying 
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upon §29A-5-4, W.va. Code, reached a decision in the Respondent's appeal of the final 

decision of the CPRS. A.R 3-4. 

The circuit court made the following factual observations, offered in summation: 

1. the Petitioner (Respondent Hunting) was attempting to realize his benefit of the 

settlement; 2. While not so expressed in the language of the settlement agreement, the 

court determined that the intent of the parties was clear and unambiguous; 3. The intent 

of the parties was to assign as money damages $15,648 and $54,352 for salary and 

wages due and owing for the purpose of calculating and establishing retirement 

benefits; and 4. To rule otherwise would negate the good faith effort of the parties. A.R 

6. 

In its findings and conclusions, the circuit court ruled that the CPRS acted 

arbitrarily and capriciously in its ruling because it denied the Petitioner below 

(Respondent Hunting) the benefit and resul~s of his litigation. A.R 7-8. 

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The Respondent argues that the circuit court did not err in overturning the final 

decision of the CPRS and ruling that the Respondent's agreed settlement amount in 

2009 was to be applied in FY 2009-10 and that such action of the ePRB was arbitrary 

and capricious. The circuit court determined that the Respondent should get the benefit 

of the settlement arising from the litigation before the court. 

STATEMENT OF ORAL ARGUMENT 

Principle issues in this case have been authoritatively decided in previous 

opinions of this Court; therefore, oral argument under Rev. RA.P. 18(a) is not 
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necessary unless this Court determines that other issues arise from the record should 

be addressed. 

STANDARD OF REVIEW 

Review of a circuit court's decision involving an administrative agency order 

proceeds under the standard announced in Muscatell v. Cline, 196 W.Va. 588, 474 

S.E.2d 518 (1996). "On appeal of an administrative order from a circuit court, this Court 

is bound by the statutory standards contained in W.Va. Code § 29A-5-4(a) and reviews 

questions of law presented de novo; findings of fact by the administrative officer are 

accorded deference unless the reviewing court believes the findings to be clearly 

wrong." Syl. Pt. 1, Muscatell v. Cline, 196 W.va. 588, 474 S.E.2d 518 (1996). 

Syl. Pt. 1, Dale v. Odum, 233 W.va. 601, 760 S.E.2d 415 (2014). This Court has made 

clear that "'evidentiary findings made at an administrative hearing should not be 

reversed unless they are clearly wrong.' Syl. Pt. 1, Francis O. Day Co., Inc. v. Director, 

Div. of Envtl. Prot., 191 W.Va. 134,443 S.E.2d 602 (1994)." Syl. Pt. 2, Odum, 233 

W.va. at_, 760 S.E.2d at 416. 

ARGUMENT 

1. The circuit court did not err in holding that the Petitioner CPRB abused its 

discretion when it arbitrarily and capacioUlsly denied the benefit of ~he litigation 

settlement between the Respondent Hunting and his employer, the Lincoln 

County Board of Education. 

§29A-5-4 (2015) (g) (6), West Virginia Code, states that the court may affirm the 

order or decision of the agency or remand the case for further proceedings. It shall 

reverse, vacate or modify the order or decision of the agency if the substantial rights of 
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the petitioner or petitioners have been prejudiced because the administrative findings, 

inferences, conclusions, decision or order are: Arbitrary or capricious or characterized 

by abuse of discretion or clearly unwarranted exercise of discretion. 

The standard a circuit court is to apply when reviewing an administrative agency 

order was set forth in syllabus point two of Shepherdstown Volunteer Fire Dept. v. State 

ex rei. State of West Virginia Human Rights Com'n, 172 W.Va. 627, 309 S.E.2d 342 

(1983), as follows: 

Upon judicial review of a contested case under the West 
Virginia Administrative Procedure Act, Chapter 29A, Article 
5, Section 4(g), the circuit court may affirm the order or 
decision of the agency or remand the case for further 
proceedings. The circuit court shall reverse, vacate or modify 
the order or decision of the agency if the substantial rights of 
the petitioner or petitioners have been prejudiced because 
the administrative findings, inferences, conclusions, 
decisions or order are: "(1) In violation of constitutional or 
statutory provisions; or (2) In excess of the statutory 
authority or jurisdiction of the agency; or (3) Made upon 
unlawful procedures; or (4) Affected by other error of law; or 
(5) Clearly wrong in view of the reliable, probative and 
substantial evidence on the whole record; or (6) Arbitrary or 
capricious or characterized by abuse of discretion or clearly 
unwarranted exercise of discretion." 

In the case before the Lincoln County circuit court, the circuit court reversed the 

order or decision of the CPRB because the substantial rights of the petitioner had been 

prejudiced because the administrative findings, inferences, conclusions, decisions or 

order was made arbitrary or capricious. 

Black's Law Dictionary, 6th Edition (West Publishing Co.1990) at page 106, 

defines arbitrary and capricious as the "[c]haracterization of a decision or action taken 

by an administrative agency or inferior court meaning willful and unreasonable action 
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without consideration or in disregard of facts or law or without determining principle. 

Elwood Investors Co. v. Behme, 79 Misc.2d 910,361 N.Y.S.2d 488, 492. 

The circuit court was of the opinion that the CPRB's ruling, by allocation of the 

settlement amount over a period of fiscal years was a disregard of the court's order that 

the agreed settlement amount would be applied in FY 2009-10. And by implication, 

based upon the court's order and the evidence it reviewed, one can conclude that the 

Respondent was giving up numerous and substantial claims and in return should have 

the benefit of the settlement he reached with the LC BOE. The Respondent, in his 

testimony before the hearing examiner testified that is what he understood. A.R. 81, 84. 

Additionally, the Respondent at the same hearing testified that he settled for less money 

than what he believed he could recovery if the judge ruled in his favor in his case. A.R. 

87-88. Further, the circuit court found the same intentions with the LC BOE. As cited 

above, the LC BOE, at its September 8, 2009 meeting, interpreted the settlement 

agreement to mean that the Respondent's settlement amount would be deemed salary 

and wages for FY 2009-10. A.R. 154-155. 

The language of §18-7A-3 (12), West Virginia Code as cited and argued in the 

CPRB Petition regarding gross salary speaks for itself. 

2. The circuit court did not errr in finding that the Respondent Hunting's employer, 

the Lincoln County Board of Education through the superintendent, had authority 

to enter an agreement with the Respondent Hunting regarding retirement benefits 

that was contrary to siatute. 

The CPRB argues in its brief that the "lower court erred in finding that the 

Respondent's employer had the authority to enter into an agreement with the 
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Respondent regarding retirement benefits that was contrary to statute." Petitioner's 

Brief, p. 9. The CPRB relies upon the legal theory that the action of the circuit court in 

confirming the 2009 settlement agreement and finding that the settlement money be 

applied in fiscal year 2009-10 was consistent with the intent of the LC BOE. The CPRB 

asserts that it was not a party to the litigation nor consulted regarding the litigation. 

Certainly the CPRB was not a party to the settlement agreement. However, there is no 

affidavit or testimony in the record regarding the knowledge or involvement or the lack 

of the same as claimed by the CPRB. The state superintendent of schools and the LC 

BOE superintendent signed a binding settlement agreement but the agreement did not 

delineate how the Respondent's settlement money be applied to his salary and wages. 

The LC BOE provided a very clear intent at its September 8, 2009 meeting that the 

money received by the Respondent in the settlement agreement was to be applied in 

FY 2009-2010 even thought there was no specific language in the settlement 

agreement. The circuit court record is equally silent with specific facts as to whether the 

state superintendent or the LC BOE superintendent consulted with legal counsel and 

concluded that the action would be supported by the law. An inference can be made 

that the two superintendents must have been of the opinion that he had the authority to 

enter into a binding settlement agreement. In any event, the circuit court issued its order 

with specific findings as discussed above. 

3. The circuit court did not err in Ordering the Petitioner CPRB to partially fund a 

settlement reached by the Respondent Hunting and his employer, the Lincoln 

County Board of Education with retirement trust fund money. 
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The CPRB's last legal issue is not completely clear about the LC BOE using 

money from the Teacher's Retirement System trust account to partially fund a civil 

lawsuit. The order in Lincoln County Civil Action No. 12-AA-1 does reference to the 

settlement money received by the Respondent be treated as salary and wages and be 

included in the bases of the calculation of his retirement. The effect of the order without 

the language discussed above in the previous sentence could mean a higher monthly 

retirement income. As argued above, the circuit court's Order in Lincoln County Civil 

Action No. 12-AA-1 reflects that court's position that the Respondent should receive 

benefit of his bargained settlement agreement with the LC BOE. 

CONCLUSION AND RELIEF SOUGHT 

The Respondent requests this Court to uphold the decision of the circuit court of 

Lincoln County in Lincoln County Civil Action No. 12-AA-01.